
Page 1 of 3 

 

 

 

 

 

City Council & School Committee Joint Workshop 
and  

City Council Meeting  
Agenda 

March 6, 2017 
 

                                                                                                                
5:30 P.M.  School Committee and City Council  

A. Audit – Jill Eastman and the Audit Committee (30 minutes) 
B. Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Presentation (City and School) – Jill Eastman & John Bubier (45 

minutes) 
 
7:00 P.M.  City Council Meeting  
 
Roll call votes will begin with Councilor Titus 
 
Pledge of Allegiance   

I. Consent Items – All items listed with an asterisk (*) are considered as routine and will be approved in 
one motion.   There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Councilor or citizen so 
requests.  If requested, the item will be removed from the consent agenda and considered in the order it 
appears on the agenda.   

 
1. Order 20-03062017*  

Approving the temporary sign request for Park Avenue School’s April Festival. 
 

2. Order 21-03062017*  
Accept and place on file the City Audit. 

 

II.          Minutes  

 February 27, 2017 Regular Council Meeting  

 

III. Communications, Presentations and Recognitions   

IV. Open Session – Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly 
related to City business which is not on this agenda.   

                                      
V.          Unfinished Business  
 

1. Order 19-02272017  
Appointing a member to the Auburn Housing Authority (term expiration of 10/01/2021). 

 



 

Page 2 of 3 

 

Council may enter into executive session pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(A). 

 

VI.      New Business  
 
2. Ordinance 02-03062017  

Adopting the Complete Streets Committee Ordinance.  Public hearing and first reading. 
 

3. Ordinance 03-03062017  
Adopting the Complete Streets Ordinance. Public hearing and first reading. 
 

4. Order 22-03062017  
Authorizing the reallocation of unspent proceeds from the City’s General Obligation Bonds in the amount 
of $42,000 to be used for the renovation of the Parks Garage for a Senior Center. First Reading. 

 
5. Order 23-03062017  

Consolidating to one polling place for the June 13, 2017 Election. Public hearing. 
 

VII. Executive Session  

 Executive Session regarding a real estate matter, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C) 

VIII. Reports 
  

a. Mayor’s Report  

b. City Councilors’ Reports   

c. City Manager Report  

IX.      Open Session - Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related 
to City business which is not on this agenda. 
 
X. Adjournment 
 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered 
in executive session.  Executive sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are 
required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a 
Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council must vote to go 
into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is 
known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in 
executive session are those that fall within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  Those applicable to 
municipal government are: 

A. Discussion of personnel issues 
B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension of expulsion 
C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to 

real property or interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature 
disclosure of the information would prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency   

D. Labor contracts 
E. Contemplated litigation 
F. Discussion of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the 

general public to those records is prohibited by statute; 
G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or 

employment purposes; consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to 



 

Page 3 of 3 

 

that body or agency regarding the content of an examination; and review of examinations with the person examined; 
and 

H. Consultation between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 
30-A, section 4452, subsection 1, paragraph in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when 
the consultation relates to that pending enforcement matter.  



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  March 6, 2017  Order:  21-03062017*    
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 

 

Subject:  Annual City Audit (FY16) 
 
Information:  To comply with the City Charter the auditors presented the audit to the Audit Committee. A brief report 
needs to be made to a joint meeting of the City Council and School Committee. 

 
Advantages:  The advantages of an annual audit are numerous. It helps to promote accountability and transparency; 
identifies areas that may need improvement; helps to gain efficiencies and strengthen internal controls; reduces the 
possibility of fraud; and provides assurance to the public 
 
Disadvantages: no apparent disadvantages 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: N/A 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Recommend passage of the order to accept and place on file the Annual City Audit for 
FY16. 

 
Previous Meetings and History: The auditors presented to the City Council on 1/9/2017 and the School Finance 
Committee on 1/18/2017. 

 
Attachments: Order 21-03062017 



 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  March 6, 2017     
 
Author:  Jill M. Eastman 
 

 

Subject:  Capital Improvement Program Presentation for the City and School 
 

Information:  The City and School will present the 5 year Capital Improvement Plan. By Charter, the City 
Council has to adopt the capital plan before the end of the current fiscal year. 

 
Advantages:  N/A 
 
Disadvantages: N/A 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: N/A  

 
Staff Recommended Action:  Discussion 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: N/A 

 
Attachments:  
Summary and detail of 5 year CIP will be provided at the meeting. 

 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  March 6, 2017  Order:  20-03062017    
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 

 

Subject: Temporary sign request – Park Avenue Elementary School 
 
Information:  The Park Avenue Elementary School is requesting permission to place temporary signs in Auburn for their 
2017 Annual Spring Fest and Auction which will be held on April 8, 2017. They would like to place the signs one week 
before the event and will remove them the following day. 

 
Advantages:  Helps to promote events in the Community. 
 
Disadvantages: If not placed properly, they could potentially affect the sight distance for streets or adjacent driveways. 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: None 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Recommend passage. 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: This is a yearly request from this organization 

 
Attachments: Letter of request, locations where signs will be placed, Order 20-03062017. 
 



Thursday  March 2, 2017 

To Auburn City Council/City Manager, 

Park Avenue Elementary School will be holding it’s annual Spring Fest and Auction on Saturday, April 8th 

from 10am-2pm.  This even is organized by the school’s PTO and proceeds from this event will go 

towards funding student enrichment activities at the school.   

We are asking for permission to place 18”x24” signs on metal stakes, height of the signs from the ground 

is 36”.  They will be placed one week prior to the event and picked up the day after. 

Below is a list of locations would like to place the signs; keeping in mind not to obstruct other road signs 

or traffic signs. 

Beth Favreau 

Park Avenue PTO President 

 

Anticipated Sign Locations: 

Park Ave & Court Street 

Park Ave, entrance to school 

Park Ave & Lake Street 

Turner Street & Union Street bypass 

Center Street & Lake Auburn Ave 

Center Street, North & South bound before bridge 

Turner Street Circle near Goodwill 

Turner Street & Mount Auburn Ave 

Court Street & Lake Street 

Minot Ave near Fairview School 

Fairview Ave & Court Street 

Center island out front of AMS 

 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
VACANT, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 20-03062017 
 

 
  
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby approves the request to place temporary signs for the 
Park Avenue Elementary School’s 2017 annual Spring Fest event at the locations listed below 
as long as their placement does not affect sight distance for streets or adjacent driveways. The 
signs will be placed the week before the April 8, 2017 event and removed the day after the 
event (April 9, 2017). 
 
 
 Park Ave & Court Street 
 Park Ave, entrance to school 
 Park Ave & Lake Street 
 Turner Street & Union Street bypass 
 Center Street & Lake Auburn Ave 
 Center Street, North & South bound before bridge 
 Turner Street Circle near Goodwill 
 Turner Street & Mount Auburn Ave 
 Court Street & Lake Street 
 Minot Ave near Fairview School 
 Fairview Ave & Court Street 
 Center island out front of AMS 

 
 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  March 6, 2017  Order:  21-03062017*    
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 

 

Subject:  Annual City Audit (FY16) 
 
Information:  To comply with the City Charter the auditors presented the audit to the Audit Committee. A brief report 
needs to be made to a joint meeting of the City Council and School Committee. 

 
Advantages:  The advantages of an annual audit are numerous. It helps to promote accountability and transparency; 
identifies areas that may need improvement; helps to gain efficiencies and strengthen internal controls; reduces the 
possibility of fraud; and provides assurance to the public 
 
Disadvantages: no apparent disadvantages 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: N/A 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Recommend passage of the order to accept and place on file the Annual City Audit for 
FY16. 

 
Previous Meetings and History: The auditors presented to the City Council on 1/9/2017 and the School Finance 
Committee on 1/18/2017. 

 
Attachments: Order 21-03062017 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
VACANT, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER  21-03062017 
  
  ORDERED, that the City Council hereby accepts and places on file the Annual City Audit for 
Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2016.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 













 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  March 6, 2017  Order: 19-02272017 
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 
Subject:  Appointment to the Auburn Housing Authority 
 
The Appointment Committee met on February 6, 2017 to review applications and make their nominations for various 
boards and committees of the City. They were unable to reach full consensus on making a nomination to the Auburn 
Housing Authority and voted to get full Council recommendation. This was on the 2/27/2017 agenda, but was 
postponed to the 3/6/2017 Council meeting. 
 
Council may enter into executive session pursuant to 1 MRSA Sec. 406(6)(A) to review applications or for further 
discussion before making appointments. 

 
Advantages:  Fills the vacant position. 
 
Disadvantages: No apparent disadvantages. 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: None 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Consider appointing someone to fill the vacancy. 

 
Previous Meetings and History: The Appointment Committee met on February 6, 2017 to make their nominations, 
appointments were all made at the 2/27/17 Council meeting with the exception of the Auburn Housing Authority 
appointment. This was postponed to the 3/6/2017 Council meeting. 

 
Attachments:  
Applications 
Order 19-02272017 

































James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
VACANT, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 19-02272017 
  
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby appoints ___________________________ to serve on  
the Auburn Housing Authority with a term expiration date of 10/01/2021. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  March 6, 2017  Ordinance: 02-03062017     
 
Author:  Denis D’Auteuil 
 

 

Subject:  Complete Streets Committee Ordinance 
 

Information:  The Bicycle Pedestrian Committee on February 22nd, 2017 finalized their recommended language for the 

proposed Complete Streets Committee Ordinance that is attached. 
 

Advantages:  Formalizes the existing Committee with an Ordinance. 
 
Disadvantages:  

 
City Budgetary Impacts: Complete street requirements may result in additional construction costs in order to 
accommodate all modes of transportation. 

 
Staff Recommended Action:  Passage 

 
Previous Meetings and History:  

 
Attachments: Ordinance language 
 



ORDINANCE, ESTABLISHING THE COMPLETE STREETS COMMITTEE 
 

Be it Ordained, that the Code of Ordinances be Amended to Create the Complete Streets 
Committee as follows: 
 

Article IV, Boards, Commissions, Committees and Bureau’s 

Division ___ -- Complete Streets Committee 
 

Section 2- ___.  Purpose and Mission 
 

The purpose of the Complete Streets Committee is to 
 

(a) Promote and advise the development of public infrastructure which supports a multi-
modal transportation system for all users, not strictly motor vehicles, and includes 
the best design practices for enhancing safety as well as community and economic 
development; 

(b) Develop and recommend policies to the respective governing bodies and planning 
agencies that address and support all modes of transportation in Lewiston Auburn; 

(c) Advise the respective public works and engineering departments on how all modes 
of travel can be accommodated in street, highway, trail, and open space projects;   

 

Section 2-___.  Appointment and Membership. 
 

(a) The Committee shall consist of nine (9) members as follows: 4 residents of the City of 
Auburn, 4 residents of the City of Lewiston, and 1 representative of an organization 
directly involved in issues of public health and wellness.  A city councilor may be 
appointed as a resident. 

(b) The residents of each community shall be appointed in accordance with the standard 
procedures employed by each community for such appointments.  The representative of 
an organization directly involved in issues of public health shall be appointed by majority 
vote of the members of the full committee. 

(c) The initial term for resident members shall be three (3) years, as shall the term of the 
representative of a public health organization.  These terms shall run from the first day 
of January of the year in which the appointment is made.  At the time the initial 
appointments are made, the appointing authority shall assign each resident member to 
a term with one member appointed to a one year term; one to a two year term; and 
one to a three year term.  Members shall remain in office until their successors are 
appointed. 

(d) Vacancies shall be filled following the same process employed for the initial appointment 
of members. 

(e) A vacancy shall be declared if any member of the committee fails to attend three 
consecutive regular meetings of the committee without being excused by the committee 
chair. 

 
 
 
 
 

Section 2-___.  Duties and Responsibilities. 



 

The Complete Streets Committee shall:  
 

(a) Follow the City’s Complete Streets Policy, oversee its implementation, and review the 
policy every 2 years to recommend changes as appropriate; 

(b) Serve as the primary resource representing Lewiston and Auburn in the update of 
Regional and Statewide plans dealing with transportation issues involving motorized 
vehicles, bicycles, pedestrians, public transportation, and other non-automobile related 
transportation issues; 

(c) Develop and recommend policies and ordinances for passage by the City Councils in 
support of alternative modes of transportation; 

(d) Review and comment on existing transportation projects including regionally approved 
projects, municipally initiated projects, and improvements originating from Traffic 
Movement Permits associated with development projects; and 

(e) Participate with appropriate city and state departments, committees, and metropolitan 
planning organizations in planning coordinated multi-modal transportation systems in L-
A and the surrounding region, such as rail, bus, and air. 

 

Section 2-___ Organization. 
 

(a) The Committee shall have the following officers:  Chair, vice-chair, and secretary, each 
of whom shall be selected by a majority of the members of the committee at its first 
meeting in January of each year.  The chair shall preside over all meetings of the board, 
shall supervise the affairs of the board, and shall perform such other duties as may be 
assigned to the office by the committee. The vice-chair shall assist the chair in carrying 
out the latter’s duties and shall preside at meetings in the chair’s absence.  The 
secretary shall be responsible for preparing and distributing committee agendas and 
minutes and ensuring that the legal posting requirements are met. 

(b) A quorum necessary to conduct an official meeting shall consist of at least six members 
and at least six concurring votes shall be necessary to constitute an action on any 
matter. 

(c) The committee shall meet at least quarterly and may meet more frequently at the call of 
the chair. 

(d) Unless otherwise prescribed by this Division or by bylaws established by the Committee, 
the Committee shall operate in accordance with Robert’s Rules of Order. 

 

Section 2-___.  Staff Support.  The City Manager/Administrator of each community shall 
designate a planning or public works staff member to serve as a liaison to the committee. 
  



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
VACANT, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

Page 1 of 3 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDINANCE 02-03062017 
  

ORDINANCE, ESTABLISHING THE COMPLETE STREETS COMMITTEE 
 
BE IT ORDAINED, that the City Council hereby adopts the Ordinance establishing the Complete 
Streets Committee as noted below: 

 
Article V, Boards, Commissions, and Committees  

Division 6 - Complete Streets Committee 
 

Section 2- 482.2.  Purpose and Mission 
 
The purpose of the Complete Streets Committee is to 
 

(a) Promote and advise the development of public infrastructure which supports a 
multi-modal transportation system for all users, not strictly motor vehicles, and 
includes the best design practices for enhancing safety as well as community and 
economic development; 

(b) Develop and recommend policies to the respective governing bodies and planning 
agencies that address and support all modes of transportation in Lewiston Auburn; 

(c) Advise the respective public works and engineering departments on how all modes 
of travel can be accommodated in street, highway, trail, and open space projects;   

 
Section 2-482.3.  Appointment and Membership. 
 

(a) The Committee shall consist of nine (9) members as follows: 4 residents of the City of 
Auburn, 4 residents of the City of Lewiston, and 1 representative of an organization 
directly involved in issues of public health and wellness.  A city councilor may be 
appointed as a resident. 

(b) The residents of each community shall be appointed in accordance with the standard 
procedures employed by each community for such appointments.  The representative of 
an organization directly involved in issues of public health shall be appointed by majority 
vote of the members of the full committee. 

(c) The initial term for resident members shall be three (3) years, as shall the term of the 
representative of a public health organization.  These terms shall run from the first day 
of January of the year in which the appointment is made.  At the time the initial 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
VACANT, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

Page 2 of 3 

 

appointments are made, the appointing authority shall assign each resident member to 
a term with one member appointed to a one year term; one to a two year term; and 
one to a three year term.  Members shall remain in office until their successors are 
appointed. 

(d) Vacancies shall be filled following the same process employed for the initial 
appointment of members. 

(e) A vacancy shall be declared if any member of the committee fails to attend three 
consecutive regular meetings of the committee without being excused by the 
committee chair. 

 
Section 2-482.4.  Duties and Responsibilities. 
 
The Complete Streets Committee shall:  
 

(a) Follow the City’s Complete Streets Policy, oversee its implementation, and review the 
policy every 2 years to recommend changes as appropriate; 

(b) Serve as the primary resource representing Lewiston and Auburn in the update of 
Regional and Statewide plans dealing with transportation issues involving motorized 
vehicles, bicycles, pedestrians, public transportation, and other non-automobile related 
transportation issues; 

(c) Develop and recommend policies and ordinances for passage by the City Councils in 
support of alternative modes of transportation; 

(d) Review and comment on existing transportation projects including regionally approved 
projects, municipally initiated projects, and improvements originating from Traffic 
Movement Permits associated with development projects; and 

(e) Participate with appropriate city and state departments, committees, and metropolitan 
planning organizations in planning coordinated multi-modal transportation systems in L-
A and the surrounding region, such as rail, bus, and air. 

 
Section 2-482.5 Organization. 
 

(a) The Committee shall have the following officers:  Chair, vice-chair, and secretary, each 
of whom shall be selected by a majority of the members of the committee at its first 
meeting in January of each year.  The chair shall preside over all meetings of the board, 
shall supervise the affairs of the board, and shall perform such other duties as may be 
assigned to the office by the committee. The vice-chair shall assist the chair in carrying 
out the latter’s duties and shall preside at meetings in the chair’s absence.  The 
secretary shall be responsible for preparing and distributing committee agendas and 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
VACANT, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

Page 3 of 3 

 

minutes and ensuring that the legal posting requirements are met. 
(b) A quorum necessary to conduct an official meeting shall consist of at least six members 

and at least six concurring votes shall be necessary to constitute an action on any 
matter. 

(c) The committee shall meet at least quarterly and may meet more frequently at the call of 
the chair. 

(d) Unless otherwise prescribed by this Division or by bylaws established by the Committee, 
the Committee shall operate in accordance with Robert’s Rules of Order. 

 
Section 2-482.6.  Staff Support.  The City Manager/Administrator of each community shall 
designate a planning or public works staff member to serve as a liaison to the committee. 
  
 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  March 6, 2017  Ordinance: 03-03062017     
 
Author:  Denis D’Auteuil 
 

 

Subject:  Complete Streets Ordinance 
 

Information:  The Bicycle Pedestrian Committee on February 22nd, 2017 finalized their recommended language for the 

proposed Complete Streets Ordinance that is attached. 
 

Advantages:  Formalizes the existing practice of accommodating all modes of transportation where and when 
practicable.  
 
Disadvantages:  

 
City Budgetary Impacts: Complete street requirements may result in additional construction costs in order to 
accommodate all modes of transportation. 

 
Staff Recommended Action:  Passage 

 
Previous Meetings and History:  

 
Attachments: Ordinance language 
 



1 
 

COMPLETE STREETS ORDINANCE 
 

 
Section-1.  Complete Streets  

 
The City of [Lewiston or Auburn] will plan for, design, construct, operate, and maintain 
an appropriate and integrated transportation system that will meet the needs of motorists, 
pedestrians, bicyclists, wheelchair users, transit vehicles and riders, freight haulers, 
emergency responders, and residents of all ages and abilities.  

 
(1) Transportation facilities that support the concept of complete streets include, but are not 

limited to, pavement markings and signs; street and sidewalk lighting; sidewalk and 
pedestrian safety improvements; Americans with Disabilities Act and Title VI compliance; 
transit accommodations; bicycle accommodations including intersection detection and 
appropriate signage and markings; and streetscapes that appeal to and promote 
pedestrian use.  

 
(2) The system’s design will be consistent with and supportive of local neighborhoods, 

recognizing that transportation needs vary and must be balanced in a flexible, safe, and 
cost effective manner. 

 
Section-2.  Projects 

 
Those involved in the planning and design of projects within the public right-of-way will give 
consideration to all users and modes of travel from the start of planning and design work.  
Transportation improvements shall be viewed as opportunities to create safer, more 
accessible streets for all users.  This shall apply to new construction, reconstruction, and 
rehabilitation.  The Complete Streets Committee12 shall be briefed on potential future 
projects of this nature during or immediately following the annual development of the city’s 
capital improvement program.  This will allow the Committee to provide its views regarding 
complete streets policy early in the planning and design process.   
 

Section-3.  Exceptions 

 
Exceptions to this policy may be made under the circumstances listed below: 

 
(1) Street projects may exclude those elements of this policy that would require the 

accommodation of street uses prohibited by law; 

 
(2) Ordinary maintenance activities such as mowing, snowplowing, sweeping, spot repair, 

                                        
1
 Note that this assumes the Complete Streets Committee will also be established by an ordinance.  

Such an ordinance would be located in a different section of the Code. 
2
 Note that this assumes the Complete Streets Committee will also be established by an ordinance. 

  Such an ordinance would be located in a different section of the Code. This footnote applies to all 
references in this ordinance to the Committee. 

 



2 
 

joint or crack sealing, or pothole filling do not require that elements of this policy be 
applied beyond the scope of that maintenance activity; 

 
(3) Ordinary maintenance paving projects may only exclude the elements of this policy that 

would require increasing pavement width.  However, when such projects do occur, the 
condition of existing facilities supporting alternate transportation modes should be 
evaluated as well as the appropriateness of modifying existing pavement markings and 
signage that supports such alternate modes.  This exception does not apply to street 
reconstruction projects; 

 
(4) Street reconstruction projects and maintenance paving projects which involve widening 

pavement may exclude elements of this policy when the accommodation of a specific 
use is expected to: 

 
(a) require more space than is physically available, or 

(b) be located where both current and future demand is proven absent, or 

(c) drastically increase project costs and equivalent alternatives exist within close 
proximity, or 

(d) have adverse impacts on environmental resources such as streams, wetlands, 
floodplains, or on historic structures or sites above and beyond the impacts of 
currently existing infrastructure. 

 
(5) In order for an exception to be granted under the conditions stated above and prior to 

finalizing the design and budget for the intended project, the City Engineer and Director 
of Public Works must first consult with the City Planner and City Administrator.  If the 
City Administrator concludes that an exception to the policy is warranted, the 
Administrator or the staff representative to the Complete Streets Committee shall 
consult with the Committee regarding the project and the requested exception.  If, after 
this consultation, a difference of opinion exists between the Committee and staff 
regarding an exception that has been granted, the Committee may forward its concerns 
to the City Council for its consideration.   

 
(6) The City Council may grant such other exceptions as it sees fit. 

 
Section-4.  Intergovernmental Cooperation 
 

The City will cooperate with the City of [Lewiston or Auburn] and with other 
transportation agencies including the Maine Department of Transportation (MDOT) and 
Androscoggin Transportation Resource Center (ATRC) to ensure the principles and practices 
of complete streets are embedded within their planning, design, construction, and 
maintenance activities.  The two cities will specifically cooperate to ensure the 
transportation network flows seamlessly between the two communities in accordance with 
local and regional road, transit, bicycle, and pedestrian plans and mutually agreed upon 
design criteria. 
 

Section-5.   Design Criteria 

 



3 
 

The City, through its Public Works Department, shall develop and adopt design criteria, 
standards, and guidelines based upon recognized best practices in street design, 
construction, and operation.  To the greatest extent possible, the City shall coordinate with 
the City of Auburn to adopt the same standards with particular emphasis on pedestrian and 
bicycle markings and wayfinding signage.  Resources to be referenced in developing these 
standards shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, the latest editions of: American 
Association of State Highway Transportation Officials (AASHTO) Policy on Geometric Design 
of Highways and Streets, Guide for Planning, Designing, and Operating Pedestrian Facilities, 
and Guide for the Development of Bicycle Facilities; Institute of Transportation Engineers 
(ITE) Designing Walkable Urban Thoroughfares: A Context Sensitive Approach; National 
Association of City Transportation Officials (NACTO) Urban Bikeway Design Guide; U.S. 
Access Board Public Right-of-Way Accessibility Guidelines; Androscoggin Transportation 
Resource Center (ATRC) Complete Streets, A Guide to Best Management and Design 
Practice; Highway Capacity Manual and Highway Safety Manual; the Manual on Uniform 
Traffic Control Devices; and any applicable policies and guidance issued by the Maine 
Department of Transportation. 

 
The Cities will be permitted to consider innovative or non-traditional design options that 
provide a comparable level of safety and utility for users as those listed above. 
 

Section-6.   Community Context 

 
Implementation of this Policy shall take into account the goal of enhancing the context and 
character of the surrounding built and natural environments.  Transportation facilities, 
including roads, should be adapted to fit and enhance the character of the surrounding 
neighborhood. 
 

Section-7.   Network 

 
Special attention should be given to projects which enhance the overall transportation 
system and its connectivity.  Specifically, high priority should be given to: 

 
(1) Corridors providing primary access to one or more significant destinations such as a 

parks or recreation areas, schools, shopping/commercial areas, public transportation, or 
employment centers; 

(2) Corridors serving a relatively high number of users of non-motorized transportation 
modes; 

(3) Corridors providing important continuity or connectivity links to existing pedestrian or 
bicycle networks; 

(4) Projects identified in regional or local bicycle pedestrian plans prepared by organizations 
such as the ATRC and other associated groups. 

 
Section-8.   Performance Measures 

 
The City Administrator and/or designee shall report to the Planning Board and City Council 
on an annual basis on the transportation projects undertaken within the prior year and 
planned within the coming year and the extent to which each of these projects has met the 
Complete Streets ordinance. 



4 
 

 
Section-9.  Implementation 
 

This policy will be primarily implemented through planning comprehensive complete streets 
networks regionally and within each city. 

 
Additional implementation activities will include, but not be limited to: developing project 
checklists that incorporate complete streets elements in the Cities’ overall design processes; 
annual review of capital improvement plans and unified planning work programs; 
establishing design manuals that clearly set forth the complete streets standards; and 
directing the Planning Boards to evaluate changes to the Cities’ respective land development 
codes that will extend the complete streets concept into private developments through 
appropriate subdivision and site plan regulations. 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
VACANT, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

Page 1 of 5 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDINANCE 03-03062017 
 

 COMPLETE STREETS ORDINANCE 
 
 
BE IT ORDAINED, that the City Council hereby adopts the Complete Street Ordinance as noted 
below: 

 
 
Complete Streets  

 
The City of Auburn will plan for, design, construct, operate, and maintain an appropriate 
and integrated transportation system that will meet the needs of motorists, pedestrians, 
bicyclists, wheelchair users, transit vehicles and riders, freight haulers, emergency 
responders, and residents of all ages and abilities.  

 
(1) Transportation facilities that support the concept of complete streets include, but are 

not limited to, pavement markings and signs; street and sidewalk lighting; sidewalk and 
pedestrian safety improvements; Americans with Disabilities Act and Title VI 
compliance; transit accommodations; bicycle accommodations including intersection 
detection and appropriate signage and markings; and streetscapes that appeal to and 
promote pedestrian use.  

 
(2) The system’s design will be consistent with and supportive of local neighborhoods, 

recognizing that transportation needs vary and must be balanced in a flexible, safe, and 
cost effective manner. 

 
 Projects 

 
Those involved in the planning and design of projects within the public right-of-way will give 
consideration to all users and modes of travel from the start of planning and design work.  
Transportation improvements shall be viewed as opportunities to create safer, more 
accessible streets for all users.  This shall apply to new construction, reconstruction, and 
rehabilitation.  The Complete Streets Committee12 shall be briefed on potential future 

                                                 
1
 Note that this assumes the Complete Streets Committee will also be established by an ordinance.  



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
VACANT, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

Page 2 of 5 

 

projects of this nature during or immediately following the annual development of the city’s 
capital improvement program.  This will allow the Committee to provide its views regarding 
complete streets policy early in the planning and design process.   
 
Exceptions 

 
Exceptions to this policy may be made under the circumstances listed below: 

 
(1) Street projects may exclude those elements of this policy that would require the 

accommodation of street uses prohibited by law; 
 
(2) Ordinary maintenance activities such as mowing, snowplowing, sweeping, spot repair, 

joint or crack sealing, or pothole filling do not require that elements of this policy be 
applied beyond the scope of that maintenance activity; 

 
(3) Ordinary maintenance paving projects may only exclude the elements of this policy that 

would require increasing pavement width.  However, when such projects do occur, the 
condition of existing facilities supporting alternate transportation modes should be 
evaluated as well as the appropriateness of modifying existing pavement markings and 
signage that supports such alternate modes.  This exception does not apply to street 
reconstruction projects; 

 
(4) Street reconstruction projects and maintenance paving projects which involve widening 

pavement may exclude elements of this policy when the accommodation of a specific 
use is expected to: 

 
(a) require more space than is physically available, or 

(b) be located where both current and future demand is proven absent, or 

(c) drastically increase project costs and equivalent alternatives exist within close 
proximity, or 

(d) have adverse impacts on environmental resources such as streams, wetlands, 
floodplains, or on historic structures or sites above and beyond the impacts of 

                                                                                                                                                             
Such an ordinance would be located in a different section of the Code. 

2
 Note that this assumes the Complete Streets Committee will also be established by an ordinance. 

  Such an ordinance would be located in a different section of the Code. This footnote applies to all 

references in this ordinance to the Committee. 
 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
VACANT, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

Page 3 of 5 

 

currently existing infrastructure. 
 

(5) In order for an exception to be granted under the conditions stated above and prior to 
finalizing the design and budget for the intended project, the City Engineer and Director 
of Public Works must first consult with the City Planner and City Administrator.  If the 
City Administrator concludes that an exception to the policy is warranted, the 
Administrator or the staff representative to the Complete Streets Committee shall 
consult with the Committee regarding the project and the requested exception.  If, after 
this consultation, a difference of opinion exists between the Committee and staff 
regarding an exception that has been granted, the Committee may forward its concerns 
to the City Council for its consideration.   

 
(6) The City Council may grant such other exceptions as it sees fit. 

 
 Intergovernmental Cooperation 
 

The City will cooperate with the City of Lewiston and with other transportation agencies 
including the Maine Department of Transportation (MDOT) and Androscoggin 
Transportation Resource Center (ATRC) to ensure the principles and practices of complete 
streets are embedded within their planning, design, construction, and maintenance 
activities.  The two cities will specifically cooperate to ensure the transportation network 
flows seamlessly between the two communities in accordance with local and regional road, 
transit, bicycle, and pedestrian plans and mutually agreed upon design criteria. 
 

 Design Criteria 
 

The City, through its Public Works Department, shall develop and adopt design criteria, 
standards, and guidelines based upon recognized best practices in street design, 
construction, and operation.  To the greatest extent possible, the City shall coordinate with 
the City of Auburn to adopt the same standards with particular emphasis on pedestrian and 
bicycle markings and wayfinding signage.  Resources to be referenced in developing these 
standards shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, the latest editions of: American 
Association of State Highway Transportation Officials (AASHTO) Policy on Geometric Design 
of Highways and Streets, Guide for Planning, Designing, and Operating Pedestrian Facilities, 
and Guide for the Development of Bicycle Facilities; Institute of Transportation Engineers 
(ITE) Designing Walkable Urban Thoroughfares: A Context Sensitive Approach; National 
Association of City Transportation Officials (NACTO) Urban Bikeway Design Guide; U.S. 
Access Board Public Right-of-Way Accessibility Guidelines; Androscoggin Transportation 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
VACANT, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

Page 4 of 5 

 

Resource Center (ATRC) Complete Streets, A Guide to Best Management and Design 
Practice; Highway Capacity Manual and Highway Safety Manual; the Manual on Uniform 
Traffic Control Devices; and any applicable policies and guidance issued by the Maine 
Department of Transportation. 

 
The Cities will be permitted to consider innovative or non-traditional design options that 
provide a comparable level of safety and utility for users as those listed above. 
 
Community Context 

 
Implementation of this Policy shall take into account the goal of enhancing the context and 
character of the surrounding built and natural environments.  Transportation facilities, 
including roads, should be adapted to fit and enhance the character of the surrounding 
neighborhood. 
 
Network 

 
Special attention should be given to projects which enhance the overall transportation 
system and its connectivity.  Specifically, high priority should be given to: 

 
(1) Corridors providing primary access to one or more significant destinations such as a 

parks or recreation areas, schools, shopping/commercial areas, public transportation, or 
employment centers; 

(2) Corridors serving a relatively high number of users of non-motorized transportation 
modes; 

(3) Corridors providing important continuity or connectivity links to existing pedestrian or 
bicycle networks; 

(4) Projects identified in regional or local bicycle pedestrian plans prepared by organizations 
such as the ATRC and other associated groups. 

 
  Performance Measures 

 
The City Administrator and/or designee shall report to the Planning Board and City Council 
on an annual basis on the transportation projects undertaken within the prior year and 
planned within the coming year and the extent to which each of these projects has met the 
Complete Streets ordinance. 
 
Implementation 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
VACANT, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

Page 5 of 5 

 

 
This policy will be primarily implemented through planning comprehensive complete streets 
networks regionally and within each city. 

 
Additional implementation activities will include, but not be limited to: developing project 
checklists that incorporate complete streets elements in the Cities’ overall design processes; 
annual review of capital improvement plans and unified planning work programs; 
establishing design manuals that clearly set forth the complete streets standards; and 
directing the Planning Boards to evaluate changes to the Cities’ respective land 
development codes that will extend the complete streets concept into private 
developments through appropriate subdivision and site plan regulations. 

 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  March 6, 2017  Order:  22-03062017    
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 

 

Subject:  Reallocation of Unspent Proceeds from the City’s General obligation Bonds 
 
Information:  To get authorization to reallocate $42,000 of unspent proceeds from the city’s general obligation bonds to 
be used for the renovation of the Parks Garage for a Senior Center. This will require two readings and an affirmative vote 
of 5 Councilors for passage. 

 
Advantages:  Provide the community with a large meeting space, with the primary focus to provide Seniors with a place 
to gather for programs and events, but also be utilized by other community groups and events. 

 
 
Disadvantages: Loss of storage space for Public Service and Police for their vehicles/equipment.   

 
City Budgetary Impacts: $42,000 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Consider passage of order 

 
Previous Meetings and History: First reading to be held on 3/6/2017. A Public hearing and second reading to be held on 
3/20/2017. 

 
Attachments: copy of the public notice and order 22-03062017 



{W4718360.1} {W4718360.1} {W4718360.1} {W4319800.1} 

CITY OF AUBURN  

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 

 
Pursuant to Section 8.13 of the City Charter, notice is hereby given that the Auburn City Council 

will hold a public hearing on Monday, March 20, 2017, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers, 

Auburn Hall, 60 Court Street on a proposed order reallocating $42,000 of unspent proceeds from 

various General Obligation Bonds to finance renovation of the Parks Garage for a Senior Center. 

 

The City Council expects to conduct the first reading on the order at the March 6, 2017 meeting 

and the public hearing, second reading and final action at the meeting of March 20, 2017.   

 

The order is available for inspection at the City Clerk’s office during regular business hours. 

 

 

 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
VACANT, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 22-03062017 
  
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby Reallocates Unspent Proceeds from the City's General 

Obligation Bonds. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Auburn issued General Obligation Bonds in various amounts for various projects; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, there remain unspent proceeds of the Bonds borrowed for multiple capital improvements, 
$42,000 of which excess proceeds the City Council desires to reappropriate and reallocate to be used for 
the renovation of the Parks Garage for a Senior Center. 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, by the City Council of the City of Auburn, be it hereby ORDERED: 
 
THAT the excess proceeds of the Bonds, in the amount of $42,000 be and hereby are appropriated from 
the amount borrowed as part of various Bonds to finance the costs of the project listed above. 
 
THAT the City’s Finance Director / Treasurer be, and hereby is, authorized and empowered in the name 
and on behalf of the City, to do or cause to be done all such acts and things, and to execute and deliver, 
all such financing documents, certificates, and other documents as may be necessary or advisable, with 
the advice of counsel for the City, to carry out the provisions of this Order, as may be necessary or 
desirable. 
 
A Public Notice describing the repurposing of these Bond proceeds borrowed for Various Projects to the 
list above was published on or before March 6, 2017, in the Lewiston Sun-Journal, a daily newspaper 
published in the City of Auburn and in Androscoggin County.   
 
A public hearing was held on March 20, 2016.   

 
 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  March 6, 2017  Order:  23-03062017    
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 

 

Subject:  Consolidation of voting places for the June 13, 2017 Election. 
 
Information:  The School Budget Validation Referendum Election and Special Municipal Election for the Ward 4 City 
Council seat are to be held on June 13, 2017. There may also be a State Special Referendum Election* with a single 
question ballot.  
 
Because of anticipated low turnout, even if there is a Statewide Special Referendum Election, staff recommends 
consolidating to one polling place.  
 
State law requires a public hearing and municipal approval at least 90 days prior to the election in order to consolidate 
voting places. 

*The 127th Legislature passed “An Act To Authorize a General Fund Bond Issue To Stimulate Investment in Innovation by Maine 
Businesses To Produce Nationally and Globally Competitive Products and Services” on April 15, 2016 and to send a bond question 
out to the voters at a June 2017 election. Unless the 128th Legislature changes the date, or approves other ballot issues to go on a 
June ballot, there will be a single question ballot. 

 
Advantages:  There would be a significant cost savings. 
 
 
Disadvantages: May cause some confusion to voters and depending on the voter turnout, there could be some wait 
time for voters. 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: Additional $4,324 to staff 4 additional polling places and an additional $1,670 to program the 
number of machines needed at each location. This does not include the costs for Public Services or Clerk staff to set up 
booths, signs, and equipment at each location.   

 
Staff Recommended Action: Recommend passage. 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: N/A 

 
Attachments: Title 21-A Sec. 631 and 631 A, Order 23-03062017 



Maine Revised Statutes

Title 21-A: ELECTIONS

Chapter 9: CONDUCT OF ELECTIONS

§631. VOTING DISTRICTS
A municipality may be divided into voting districts as follows. [1985, c. 161, §6 (NEW).]

1. Procedure.  The municipal officers may divide a town or ward into convenient voting districts after
public notice and hearing held at least 90 days before an election. After the hearing, the municipal officers
shall prepare a certificate defining the limits of each district. The municipal officers shall file the certificate
with the clerk who shall record it. The clerk shall immediately file an attested copy of the certificate with the
Secretary of State. The clerk shall post an attested copy of the certificate in a conspicuous, public place in the
town or ward, and shall publish it in at least one newspaper having general circulation in the municipality at
least 30 days before election day. Voting districts, once established, may be consolidated into a lesser number
of districts by following the same procedure. Voting districts may be established or consolidated under this
section for all or only certain classes of elections.

[ 2007, c. 455, §27 (AMD) .]

2. Division terminates office.  The division of a town or ward terminates the office of election officials
previously elected or appointed from it.

[ 1985, c. 161, §6 (NEW) .]

3. Appointment of wardens and ward clerks.  At least 10 days before the election, the municipal
officers shall appoint a warden, a ward clerk in a city and at least 2 election clerks for each voting place
created by the division. Election clerks must be nominated as provided in section 503.

[ 1985, c. 161, §6 (NEW) .]

4. Officials sworn.  Before assuming the duties of office, the officials appointed under this section must
be sworn by the clerk who shall record the fact of their having been sworn.

[ 1985, c. 161, §6 (NEW) .]

5. Term and duties.  The appointed election officials shall perform the same duties at elections as those
regularly chosen and shall hold office for the same term.

[ 1985, c. 161, §6 (NEW) .]

6. Voting districts.  Voting districts are defined as wards that may be further divided into precincts.

[ 1995, c. 459, §54 (NEW) .]

SECTION HISTORY
1985, c. 161, §6 (NEW).  1995, c. 459, §54 (AMD).  1999, c. 426, §20
(AMD).  2007, c. 455, §27 (AMD).

Generated
12.22.2016   |  1



MRS Title 21-A §631. VOTING DISTRICTS

The State of Maine claims a copyright in its codified statutes. If you intend to republish this material, we require that you include the
following disclaimer in your publication:

All copyrights and other rights to statutory text are reserved by the State of Maine. The text included in this publication reflects changes
made through the Second Regular Session of the 127th Maine Legislature and is current through October 1, 2016. The text is subject to
change without notice. It is a version that has not been officially certified by the Secretary of State. Refer to the Maine Revised Statutes
Annotated and supplements for certified text.

The Office of the Revisor of Statutes also requests that you send us one copy of any statutory publication you may produce. Our goal
is not to restrict publishing activity, but to keep track of who is publishing what, to identify any needless duplication and to preserve
the State's copyright rights.

PLEASE NOTE: The Revisor's Office cannot perform research for or provide legal advice or interpretation of Maine law to the public.
If you need legal assistance, please contact a qualified attorney.

  |  2 Generated
12.22.2016



Maine Revised Statutes

Title 21-A: ELECTIONS

Chapter 9: CONDUCT OF ELECTIONS

§631-A. VOTING PLACES

1. Establishing suitable voting places.  If the municipal officers determine that there is no building
within a voting district that is suitable for a voting place, as described in section 627, the municipal officers
may, subject to the approval of the Secretary of State, establish a voting place outside the voting district in a
suitable building that is as close as possible to the voting district and as convenient as possible to the voters of
the voting district.

[ 2007, c. 455, §28 (NEW) .]

2. Consolidating voting places.  The municipal officers may, after public notice and hearing held
at least 90 days before an election, and subject to the approval of the Secretary of State, consolidate
voting places so that more than one voting district votes in the same voting place. When voting places are
consolidated under this process, the voters from the different voting districts may vote in the same or separate
guardrail enclosures in the building.

[ 2007, c. 455, §28 (NEW) .]

3. Change of voting place.  If the municipal officers wish to change the location of a voting place, they
must apply to the Secretary of State at least 60 days before the next statewide election, unless an emergency
exists. The Secretary of State shall design the application form. The Secretary of State must approve the
application before the voting place may be changed.

[ 2011, c. 342, §21 (NEW) .]

SECTION HISTORY
2007, c. 455, §28 (NEW).  2011, c. 342, §21 (AMD).

The State of Maine claims a copyright in its codified statutes. If you intend to republish this material, we require that you include the
following disclaimer in your publication:

All copyrights and other rights to statutory text are reserved by the State of Maine. The text included in this publication reflects changes
made through the Second Regular Session of the 127th Maine Legislature and is current through October 1, 2016. The text is subject to
change without notice. It is a version that has not been officially certified by the Secretary of State. Refer to the Maine Revised Statutes
Annotated and supplements for certified text.

The Office of the Revisor of Statutes also requests that you send us one copy of any statutory publication you may produce. Our goal
is not to restrict publishing activity, but to keep track of who is publishing what, to identify any needless duplication and to preserve
the State's copyright rights.

PLEASE NOTE: The Revisor's Office cannot perform research for or provide legal advice or interpretation of Maine law to the public.
If you need legal assistance, please contact a qualified attorney.

Generated
12.22.2016   |  1



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
VACANT, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 23-03062017 
  
  ORDERED, that the City Council hereby approves (pending authorization from the Secretary of 
State’s Office) the consolidation of voting places for the June 13, 2017 Election. All voting for 
this election will be held at Auburn Hall, located at 60 Court Street in Auburn. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   March 6, 2017  
 
 

Subject:  Executive Session 
 

Information: Discussion regarding a real estate matter, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6) (C). 
 

Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive session.  Executive 
sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of 
public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of 
the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is 
known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall 
within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 
 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, disciplining, 
resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the investigation or hearing of charges or 
complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's reputation or the 
individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 
(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that person be 

conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  
(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be present. 
This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  
 
B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the cost of whose 

education is paid from public funds, as long as:  
(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an executive 

session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  
 
C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property or interests 

therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would prejudice the competitive or 
bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 
D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named before the body or 

agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees may be open to the public if both 
parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 
E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or contemplated 

litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant to the code of professional 
responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place the State, municipality or other public 
agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  

 
F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public to those records 

is prohibited by statute; 
 
G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment purposes; 

consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content of an examination; and 
review of examinations with the person examined; and  

 
H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 4452, 

subsection 1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that pending enforcement 
matter.  
 


	0  Agenda 3-6-2017
	1  Info Sheet - Audit
	2  Info sheet CIP 5 yr Plan Presentation
	3  Info Sheet - Temp Sign - Park Ave
	3a  Parkavesignrequest
	3b  Order  20-03062017 Temp Sign Park Ave
	4  Info Sheet - Audit
	4a  Order  21-03062017 Audit
	5  Minutes 2-27-2017
	6  Info Sheet - AHA appointment
	6a  Auburn Housing Authority Apps
	6b  Order 19-02272017 Appointment AHA
	7  Info Sheet Complete Streets Committee
	7a  CompleteStreetsCommittee-DRAFT
	7b  Ordinance 02-03062017 Complete Streets Committee
	8  Info Sheet Complete Streets
	8a  COMPLETESTREETSORDINANCE-DRAFT
	8b  Ordinance 03-03062017 Complete Streets
	9  Info Sheet - reallocation of bonds - senior center
	9a  NOTICE reallocation for Senior Center
	9b  Order 22-03062017 Reallocation of Bond Proceeds for Parks Garage Senior Center
	10  Info Sheet - Consolidation of voting places
	10a  title21-Asec631
	10b  title21-Asec631-A
	10e  Order 23-03062017 Consolidating polling places
	11  Executive Session Real Estate matter

